
OIO No: 111/AOC/VM/O &A/2O2+25
F. No: Vrll/10 113/SV PIA -C/O&A/HA./2024-25

G2
Iffi zozt tNtrt,r

ctlrfi ryffi iFT 6rqtdrq, frfiI erffi',3rdq-(FnE
'fisr er6 araa ,"qr& riG-a T{ri 6r$th srr} ,aarar5T ,3r5{qrdr6 - 380 009.

<tfirs :(079) 2754 463OF.-aail: cus-ahmd-adi@eov.in S-flr :(0791 27 54 2343

E

F

G

B

(2)

14)

PREAMBLE

conTcrfud/ Passed By

T6 cfr aFd *'5Tqt4 *'frv ft:ra'rEra ft-qr vrar t B;t q6 arfr fuer arar tt

6iS tft EqFd W rrtu t F{i d rrg.e vrar t at +6 fs urhr fi Ew-u 3T+f, Ss sreer fr
crE-d ft-cr afts *. qo frdt i $-m ag+a 6rctd-c, ffffr efa. (JT+O, cft TiB-fr, Sr6f trq-{,

taa-{ , 3r6a-qrnE il a-r ro-ar tt

fs .nreer fi frTi(rl 3r+d 6-{A f66 qfrFd ol u.,rgo grfu+-rr r. 6-ts er6 EE i6-{;rr 6fr[ a-6r

ra w r,qfi 3+{ Ef,tdr ft-dq * t w gdia u-a fs rrr #t 6s Ff{rE f t 3it{ sr+d *. fiq
fs rrr fi Tzrdrd 6I rflur ier 6-ri + 3rs5-f, rfn w *xr rra nfrfti-r, rqqr + rltr rrc fi
cErnat 6l g-j{crd-{ nfr +-{i fi ft('3rfrd d srft-fr o'r EcI ilr+Jlrt

A
vrrr/1 0- 1 1 3/svPrA-c/o&A/H Ql 2024 -2s

+rtur+anHfusecqr-afts /
Show Cause Notice No. and Date

Waiver of SCN by the Pax.

11 1/ADC/VM / O&A/ 2O24-2s
C {ffirGrt.q@r/

Order-ln-Original No

lrrhrnel
i Date of Order-ln-Orieinal

D

30.07.2024arffi-Starfro/ Date of Issue

Vishal Malani,
Additional Commissioner,
Customs, Ahmedabad.

$rqr+*-+Erqrittc-dr /
Name and Ad&ess of Importer /
Passenger

Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan
Pathan,
39, Sabliya Estate,
Modasa, Sabarkantha,
Pin - 383 315.

(1)

3rfif, + Trq fi-{f, ciq (e.00) rrt i arqa-q r5a Eff;c ilrrl 6tar sIB(' 3it{ fsfi fiq Etir
qtfra:

(i) l3r{-n fr qo cfr 3+c
I

{s cfr qI {{ 3near ft +tE cfr f, fllr$rdr ciq (e.00) rqt t arq-rc ga' ftBz mn ttar
ilft('l

(iil

Page 1 of 21

sradH@T/ File No.

30.07.2024

Er4,
(3)

I

I



OrO No: 111/ADC/VM/O &Al2024-25
F. No: vlll/10-113/SvPlA. C/O&A1Hqy'2024.25

On the basis of detection of suspicious images in one trolley bag

at the red channel, the batch officer informed the AIU officer to further

examine that trolley bag as well as the passenger who was carrying

that bag, the AIU officials intercepted (01) Pax namely Shri

Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan who suspected to be carrying high

value dutiable goods and therefore a thorough search of all the

baggage of the passenger as well as his personal search was required

to be carried out. In presence of the Panchas, the AIU officers

intercepted one passenger along with his baggage when the said

passenger was trying to exit the Green Channel at arrival hall of

terminal 2 of Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel International Airport (SVPI),

Ahmedabad. On being asked about his identity by the AIU officers, the

passenger identified himself as Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan

showing his Passport bearing No. 25566509. Further, on being asked

he informed that he has travelled by Spicejet Airways SG16 dated

13.06.2024 and arrived at Ahmedabad on 13.06.2024 from Dubai and

shows his Boarding Pass bearing seat No. 29F. In the presence of the

Panchas, the AIU Officer asked the passenger, if he had anything to

declare to Customs, in reply to which he denied.

2.L. The AIU officers offered their personal search to the passenger

but he denied saying that had full trust on the AIU officers. The AIU

officers asked the passenger whether he wanted that his baggage to

be checked in front of executive magistrate or Superintendent of

Customs, in reply to which the said passenger gave his consent for his

baggage may be searched in front of the Superintendent of Customs.

2.2. The AIU officers again asked the passenger whether he had

anything dutiable to declare to the customs authorities, to which the

said passenger denied again. Now, the AIU officer asked Shri

Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan to pass through the Door Frame Metal

Detector (DFMD) Machine installed near the green channel in the

Arrival Hall of Terminal 2 Building, after removing all metallic objects

from his body/ clothes. The passenger readily removed all the metallic

Page 2 of 27

Brief facts of the case :



OIO No: 11I/ADC/VM/O &A/2O24-25
F No: vlll/1G1l3/SVPIA-C/O&A/HO/2O24-25

2.3. Further, The AIU Officers thoroughly checked all items of the

baggage of the passenger and found nothing objectionable. On

examination of baggage, the AIU officers put the trolley bag of the

passenger at the X-ray machine and noticed some suspicious images

in one bag. On being asked about the said suspicious images, the

passenger informed the officers that he has concealed 59 gold cut bars

inside some items of his baggage. Thereafter, the officers checked all

the items of the baggage one by one and find some suspicious images

in 03 NIVEA cream packets and some images in 06 RADIAN massage

cream tubes. Further, on being asked the passenger agreed that these

cut bars are of Gold.

2.4. The officers, then informed the Panchas that they need to contact

Shri Soni Kartikey Vasantrai, a Government Approved Valuer so as to

confirm the contents of gold in 59 cut bars recovered from 03 NIVEA

cream packets and some images in 06 RADIAN massage cream tubes.

Accordingly, the officers telephonically contacted Shri Soni Kartikey

Vasantrai and requested him to come to the office of the Air

Intelligence Unit, SVPI Airport, Ahmedabad for testing and valuation

purpose. In reply, the Government Approved Valuer informed the

officer that the testing of the material would be possible only at his

workshop as pure gold has to be extracted from these cut bars and

also informed the address of his workshop.

2.5. Thereafter, to determine the value, purity, and actual weight of

the item of gold recovered from the passenger, the AIU officer along

with Panchas went to the premises of Government Approved Valuer.

On reaching the above referred premises, the AIU officer introduced

the Panchas as well as passenger to one person named Shri Soni

Kartikey Vasantrai, Government Approved Valuer. Thereafter, Shri

Soni Kaftikey Vasantrai, weigh the said cut bars recovered from the

passenger on his weighing scale. After, weighing the cut bars

recovered from Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan, Shri Soni
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Kaftikey Vasantrai informed that the gross weight of said 59 gold cut

bars was 349.940 grams.

3. Thereafter, the Government Approved Valuer informs that 59

Gold cut bar recovered from Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan,

totally weighi ng 349.940 Grams are of 24 KT (999.0 Purity) is having

market value at Rs.25,81,5O7l- (Rupees Twenty-Five Lakhs Eighty-

One Thousand Five Hundred and Seven only) and tariff value at

Rs,22,3O,196/- (Rupees Twenty-Two Lakhs Thirty Thousand One

Hundred and Ninety-Six only). The Market Value is calculated as per

the Notification No. 38/2024-Customs (N.T.) dated 31.05.2024 (Gold)

and Notification No. 40/2024-Customs (N.T.) dated 06.06.2024

(Exchange Rate).

st.
No.

Details of
Items PCS

Net
Weight in

Gram
Purity Market Value

( Rs.)
Tariff Value

(Rs.)

1
Gold Cut

Bars 59 349.940 999.0/
24KT 25,8L,5O7 / - 22,3(J,L96/-

The officers, in presence of we the Panchas and the said

passenger, placed the said 59 gold bars, totally weighing 349.940

Grams are of 24 KT (999.0 Purity) having Rs.25,81,507/- [Market

Valuel and Rs.22,30,t96/- [Tariff Value] recovered from Shri

Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan in a transparent plastic box and after

placing the packing list on the same, tied it with white thread and

sealed it with the Customs lac seal.

4. A Statement of the said passenger, Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan

Pathan was recorded under Section 108 of the Customs Act, 1962;

wherein he admitted to have attempted to smuggle goods into India

i.e. 349.940 grams of gold of 24kt. and having purity 999.0 concealed

inside 03 NIVEA cream packets and in 06 RADIAN massage cream

tubes, with an intent of illicitly clearing the said gold and to evade

Customs duty by way of adopting the modus operandi of smuggling

the said gold as recorded under Panchnama dated 13.06.2024.

5. LEGAL PROVISIONS RELEVANTTO THE CASE!

a) As per para 2.26 of Foreign Trade Policy 2Ot5-2O Bona-fide
household goods and personal effects may be imported as
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part of passenger baggage as per limits, terms and
conditions thereof in Baggage Rules notified by Ministry of
Finance.

b)As per Section 3(2) of the Foreign Trade (Development and
Regulation) Act, 1992 the Central Government may by Order
make provision for prohibiting, restricting or otherwise
regulating, in all cases or in specified classes of cases and
subject to such exceptions, if any, as may be made by or
under the Order, the import or export of goods or services
or technology.

c) As per Section 3(3) of the Foreign Trade (Development and
Regulation) Act, 1992 AII goods to which any Order under
sub-section (2) applies shall be deemed to be goods the
import or export of which has been prohibited under section
11 of the Customs Act, 1962 (52 of 1962) and all the
provisions of that Act shall have effect accordingly.

d) As per Section 11(1) of the Foreign Trade (Development and
Regulation) Act, 1992 no export or import shall be made by
any person except in accordance with the provisions of this
Act, the rules and orders made thereunder and the foreign
trade policy for the time being in force.

e) As per Section 11(3) of the Customs Act, 1962 Any
prohibition or restriction or obligation relating to import or
export of any goods or class of goods or clearance thereof
provided in any other law for the time being in force, or any
rule or regulation made or any order or notification issued
thereunder, shall be executed under the provisions of that
Act only if such prohibition or restriction or obligation is
notified under the provisions of this Act, subject to such
exceptions, modifications or adaptations as the Central
Government deems fit.

f) As per Section 2(3) - "baggage" includes unaccompanied
baggage but does not include motor vehicles

9) As per Section 2(22), of Customs Act, 1962 definition of
'goods' includes-

a. vessels, aircrafts and vehicles;
b. stores;
c. baggage;
d. currency and negotiable instruments; and
e. any other kind of movable property;

h)As per Section 2(33) of Customs Act 1962, prohibited goods
means any goods the import or export of which is subject to
any prohibition under this Act or any other law for the time
being in force.

i) As per Section 2(39) of the Customs Act 1962 'smuggling' in
relation to any goods, means any act or omission, which will
render such goods liable to confiscation under Section 111
or Section 113 of the Customs Act 1962.

j) As per Section 77 of the Customs Act 1962 the owner of
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baggage shall, for the purpose of clearing it, make a
declaration of its contents to the proper officer.

k)As per Section 110 of Customs Act, Lg62 if the proper
officer has reason to believe that any goods are liable to
confiscation under this Act, he may seize such goods.

l) Any goods which are imported or attempted to be imported
or brought within the Indian customs waters for the purpose
of being imported, contrary to any prohibition imposed by
or under this Act or any other law for the time being in force
shall be liable to confiscation under section 111(d) of the
Customs Act, 1962.

m) Any dutiable or prohibited goods required to be
mentioned under the regulation in an arrival manifest,
import manifest or import report which are no so mentioned
are liable to confiscation under Section 111(f) of the
Customs Act 1962.

n)Any dutiable or prohibited goods found concealed in any
manner in any package either before or after the unloading
thereof are liable to confiscation under Section 111(i) of the
Customs Act, 7962.

o)Any dutiable or prohibited goods removed or attempted to
be removed from a customs area or a warehouse without
the permission of the proper officer or contrary to the terms
of such permission are liable to confiscation under Section
111(j) of the Customs Act, 1962.

p)Any dutiable or prohibited goods which are not included or
are in excess of those included in the entry made under this
Act, or in the case of baggage in the declaration made under
Section 77 are liable to confiscation under Section 111(l) of
the Customs Act, 1962.

q)Any goods which do not correspond in respect of value or
in any other particular with the entry made under this Act
or in the case of baggage with the declaration made under
section 77 in respect thereof, or in the case of goods under
transshipment, with the declaration for transshipment
referred to in the proviso to sub-section(1) of section 54
are liable to confiscation under Section 111(m) of the
Customs Act, 1962.

r) As per Section 772 of the Customs Act, 1962 any person,
(a) who, in relation to any goods, does or omits to do any
act which act or omission would render such goods liable to
confiscation under Section 111, or abets the doing or
omission of such an act, or (b) who acquires possession of
or is in any way concerned in carrying, removing,
depositing, harboring, keeping, concealing, selling or
purchasing or in any manner dealing with any goods which
he know or has reason to believe are liable to confiscation
under Section 111, shall be liable to penalty.

s)As per Section 119 of the Customs Act, 1962 any goods
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used for concealing smuggled goods shall also be liable for
confiscation.

t) As per Section L23 of the Customs Act, 1962 (1) where any
goods to which this section applies are seized under this Act
in the reasonable belief that they are smuggled goods, the
burden of proving that they are not smuggled goods shall
be-
(a) in a case where such seizure is made from the

possession of any person -
(i) on the person from whose possession the goods

were seized;
and
(ii) if any person, other than the person from whose

possession the goods were seized, claims to be the
owner thereof, also on such other person;

(b) in any other case, on the person, if any, who claims
to be the owner of the goods so seized.

(2) This section shall apply to gold, and manufactures
thereof, watches, and any other class of goods which the
Central Government may by notification in the Official
Gazette specify.

u) As per Customs Baggage Declaration Regulations, 2013 all
passengers who come to India and having anything to
declare or are carrying dutiable or prohibited goods shall
declare their accompanied baggage in the prescribed form.

CONTRAVENTION AND VIOLATION OF LAWS

6. It therefore appears that:

a) Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan had actively involved

himself in the instant case of smuggling of gold into India. Shri

Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan had improperly imported gold in the

form of 59 gold cut bars, totally weighing 349.940 grams made of

24kl/ 999.00 purity gold, having total tariff value of Rs.22,30,1961-
(Rupees Twenty-Two Lakhs Thirty Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Six

only) and market value of Rs.25,81,5O7l- (Rupees Twenty-Five

Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Five Hundred Seven only), without

declaring it to the Customs. He opted for Green Channel to exit the

Airport with a deliberate intention to evade the payment of Customs

duty and fraudulently circumventing the restrictions and prohibitions

imposed under the Customs Act, 1962 and other allied Acts, Rules,

and Regulations. Therefore, the improperly imported gold in the
form of 59 gold cut bars, by the passenger, concealed/ hidden and
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without declaring it to the Customs on arrival in India cannot be

treated as bonafide household goods or personal effects. Shri

Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan has thus contravened the Foreign

Trade Policy 2015-20 and Section 11(1) of the Foreign Trade

(Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 read with Section 3(2)
and 3(3) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act,

L992.

b) By not declaring the value, quantity and description of the goods

imported by him, the said passenger has violated the provisions of

Baggage Rules, 2016, read with the Section 77 of the Customs Act,

1962 and Regulation 3 of the Customs Baggage Declaration

Regulations,2013.

c) The improperly imported gold by the passenger, Shri Zahidkhan

Qayyumkhan Pathan, found concealed/ hidden without declaring it

to the Customs is thus liable for confiscation under Section 111(d),

111(f), 111(i), 111(j), 111(l) & 111(m) read with Section 2 (22),

(33), (39) of the Customs Act, 1962 and further read in conjunction

with Section 11(3) of the Customs Act, 1962.

d) Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan, by his above-described

acts of omission/ commission and/ or abetment on his part has

rendered himself liable to penalty under Section 112 of the Customs

Act, 1962.

f) As per Section t23 of the Customs Act, 1962, the burden of
proving that the said improperly imported gold, totally weighing

349.940 grams having tariff value of Rs.22,30,196/- and market

value of Rs.25,81,507/- by way of concealment in the form of 59

gold cut bars, without declaring it to the Customs, are not smuggled

goods, is upon the passenger and the Noticee, Shri Zahidkhan

Qayyumkhan Pathan.

7. The passenger, Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan vide his

letter dated 13.06.2024, submitted that he is cooperating in

investigation and claiming the ownership of the gold recovered

from him. He understood the charges levelled against him. He
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requested to adjudicate the case without issuance of Show Cause

Notice.

8. PERSONAL HEARING:

Personal Hearing in this case was fixed held on 24.07.2024. Shri

Rishikesh Mehra & Smt. Rehanabanu Z. Pathan, Advocates appeared

for personal hearing on 24.07.2024 on behalf of Shri Zahidkhan

Qayyumkhan Pathan. The Advocates submitted that a written reply

dated 24.06.2024 has been filed and reiterated the same. He

submitted that his client Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan, is an

NRI and residing in Dubai since 2017. The Advocates submitted that

he (client) is a partner in the firm Taj Falah General Trading LLC from

20L7 . He submitted copy of Memorandum of Association of Taj Al Falah

General Trading LLC along with agreement of Share, Sales &
Amendment Agreement on Memorandum of Association of Limited

Liability Company. He submitted that his client Shri Zahidkhan started

new business in 2024 in the name of Zehraan Groups FZE LLC in

Sharjah and submitted copy of Memorandum & Articles of Association.

He also submitted that the gold was purchased by him (client) from his

personal savings and borrowed money from his friends. He reiterated

that his client brought Gold, in the form of 59 gold cut bars for his

personal and family use and submitted copy of purchase bill no. HO -
648 dated LL.06.2024, issued by M/s. New Classic Gold Trading LLC,

Dubai which is in the name of his client. There was no malafide

intention of smuggling or illegal activity by the Noticee. This is the first

time he brought gold, Due to ignorance of law the gold was not

declared by the passenger. He further submitted that his client is ready

to pay applicable fine and penalty and requested for re-export/ release

of the seized gold. He requested to take lenient view in the matter and

allow to re-export/ release the gold on payment of reasonable fine and

penalty.

DISCUSSION & FINDINGS:

9. I have carefully gone through the facts of the case and

submissions made by the passenger/ Noticee during the personal

hearing. I find that the passenger had requested for waiver of Show
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Cause Notice. The request for non-issuance of written Show Cause

Notice is accepted in terms of the first proviso to Section 124 of the

Customs Act, 1962 and accordingly, the matter is taken up for decision

on merits.

10. In the instant case, I find that the main issues that are to be

decided is whether the said gold, in the form of 59 gold cut bars, of

24Kt/ 999.0, totally weighing 349.940 grams and having tariff value of

Rs.22,30,196/- (Rupees Twenty-Two Lakhs Thirty Thousand One

Hundred Ninety-Six only) and market value of Rs.25,81,507/- (Rupees

Twenty-Five Lakhs Eighty-One Thousand Five Hundred Seven only)

carried by the passenger, which was seized vide Seizure Order dated

13.06.2024 under the Panchnama proceedings dated 13.06.2024 on

the reasonable belief that the said goods were smuggled into India, is

liable for confiscation under Section 111 of the Customs Act, 1962

(hereinafter referred to as'the Act') or not and whether the passenger

is liable for penalty under the provisions of Section ll2 of the Act or

not.

11. I find that the passenger Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan,

was asked by the Customs officers whether he was having anything

dutiable to declare to the Customs, to which he had replied that he has

nothing to declare. Further, the baggage of the passenger was also

passed through the BSM machine. On examination of his baggage, the

AIU officers noticed some suspicious images in one bag. On being

asked about the said suspicious images, the passenger informed the

officers that he has concealed 59 gold cut bars inside some items of

his baggage. i.e. 03 NIVEA cream packets and s 06 RADIAN massage

cream tubes. Further, on being asked the passenger agreed that these

cut bars are of Gold.

I further find that after testing, converting and valuation,

the government approved valuer confirmed that the said

recovered gold, in the form of 59 gold cut bars, is of purity

999.O/24Kt, totally weighing 349.94O Grams ('the said gold'

for short) having Tariff value of Rs.22,30 ,L96/- and Market

value of Rs.25,81,507/-. The said gold was seized under the
provisions of the Customs Act, L962, under Panchnama
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proceedings dated 13.06.2024. Hence, I find that the passenger

was well.aware about the fact that the gold is dutiable item and he

intentionally wanted to clear the same without payment of Customs

duty which is also admitted by him in his statement dated 13.06.2024.

Further, the Baggage Rules, 2016 nowhere mentions anything about

import of gold in commercial quantity. It simply mentions the

restrictions on impoft of gold which are found to be violated in the

present case. Ignorance of law is not an excuse but an attempt to

divert adjudication proceedings.

12. In this regard, I find that the Customs Baggage Rules,2016

nowhere mentions about carrying gold in commercial quantity. It
simply mentions about the restrictions on gold carried by the

international passengers. Further, the Hon'ble Apex Court in Om

Prakash Bhatia case reported at 2003 (155) ELT423 (SC) has held that

if impoftation and exportation of goods are subject to certain

prescribed conditions, which are to be fulfilled before or after clearance

of goods, goods would fall within the ambit of 'prohibited goods' if such

conditions are not fulfilled. In the instant case, the passenger had

concealed/ hidden the gold and did not declare the same even after

asking by the Customs officers until the same was detected. Hence, I

find that in view of the above-mentioned case citing, the passenger by

his act of concealing the gold with an intention of clearing the same

illicitly from Customs area by not declaring the same to Customs has

held the impugned gold liable for confiscation under Section 111 of the

Customs Act, 1962,

13. I find that the said gold was placed under seizure vide Seizure

Order dated L3.06.2024 under Panchnama proceedings dated

13.06.2024. The seizure was made under Section 110 of the Customs

Act, 1962 on a reasonable belief that the said goods were attempted

to be smuggled into India and liable for confiscation. In the statement

recorded on 13.06.2024, the passenger had admitted that he did not

want to declare the seized gold carried by him to the Customs on his

arrival in the SVPI Airport so that he could clear it illicitly and evade

the payment of Customs duty payable thereon. It is also on record that

the Government Approved Valuer has tested and certified that the said
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gold was made of 24Kt/999.0 purity, totally weighing 349.940 Grams,

having tariff value of Rs.22,30,196/- and market value of

Rs.25,81,507/-. The recovered gold was accordingly seized vide

Seizure Order dated 13.06.2024 under Panchnama proceedings dated

L3.06.2024 in the presence of the passenger and the Panchas.

15. Further, the passenger has accepted that he had not declared

the said gold concealed/ hidden on his arrival to the Customs

Authorities. It is clear case of non-declaration with an intent to smuggle

the gold. Accordingly, there is sufficient evidence to say that the

passenger had kept the said gold which was in his possession and failed

to declare the same before the Customs Authorities on his arrival at

SVPIA, Ahmedabad. The case of smuggling of gold recovered from his

possession and which was kept undeclared with intent of smuggling

the same and in order to evade payment of Customs duty is

conclusively proved. Thus, it is proved that the passenger violated

Section 77, Section 79 of the Customs Act for impoft/ smuggling of

gold which was not for bonafide use and thereby violated Rule 11 of

the Foreign Trade Regulation Rules 1993, and parc 2.26 of the Foreign

Trade Policy 2OL5-20. Further, as per Section 123 of the Customs Act,

1962, gold is a notified item and when goods notified thereunder are

seized under the Customs Act, 1962, on the reasonable belief that they

are smuggled goods, the burden to prove that they are not smuggled,
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14. I also find that the passenger had neither questioned the manner

of the Panchnama proceedings at the material time nor controverted

the facts detailed in the Panchnama during the course of recording his

statement. Every procedure conducted during the Panchnama by the

Officers was well documented and made in the presence of the Panchas

as well as the passenger. In fact, in his statement, he has clearly

admitted that he was aware that import of gold without payment of

Customs duty was an offence but as he wanted to save Customs duty,

he had concealed/ hidden the same with an intention to clear the gold

illicitly to evade Customs duty and thereby violated provisions of the

Customs Act, the Baggage Rules, the Foreign Trade (Development &

Regulations) Act, L992, the Foreign Trade (Development &

Regulations) Rules, 1993 and the Foreign Trade Policy, 2015-2020.
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shall be on the person from whose possession the goods have been

seized.

16. From the facts discussed above, it is evident that the passenger

had carried the said gold weighing 349.940 grams, while arriving from

Dubai to Ahmedabad, with an intention to smuggle and remove the

same without payment of Customs duty, thereby rendering the said

gold of 24Kt/999.00 purity, totally weighing 349.940 grams, liable for

confiscation, under the provisions of Sections 111(d), 111(f), 111(i),

111(j), 111(l) & 111(m) of the Customs Act, 1962. By concealing the

said gold and not declaring the same before the Customs, it is

established that the passenger had a clear intention to smuggle the

gold clandestinely with the deliberate intention to evade payment of

Customs duty. The commission of above act made the impugned

goods fall within the ambit of 'smuggling' as defined under Section

2(39) of the Act.

L7. It is seen that the Noticee had not filled the baggage declaration

form and had not declared the said gold which was in his possession,

as envisaged under Section 77 of the Act read with the Baggage Rules

and Regulation 3 of Customs Baggage Declaration Regulations, 2013.

It is also observed that the impofts were also for non-bonafide

purposes. Therefore, the said improperly imported gold weighing

349.940 grams concealed by the passenger without declaring it to the

Customs on arrival in India cannot be treated as bonafide household

goods or personal effects. The passenger has thus contravened the

Foreign Trade Policy 2Ol5-20 and Section 11(1) of the Foreign Trade

(Development and Regulation) Act, t992 read with Section 3(2) and

3(3) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992.

18. It is, therefore, proved that by the above acts of contravention,

the passenger has rendered the said gold welghing 349.940 grams,

recovered, and seized from the passenger vide Seizure Memo/ Order

dated 13.06.2024 under Panchnama proceedings dated t3.06.2024,

liable to confiscation under the provisions of Sections 111(d), 111(f),
111(i), 111(j), 111(l) & 111(m) of the Customs Act, 1962. By using

the modus of gold concealed/ hidden, it is observed that the passenger
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was fully aware that the import of said goods is offending in nature. It
is therefore very clear that he has knowingly carried the gold and failed

to declare the same on his arrival at the Airport. It is seen that he has

involved himself in carrying, keeping, concealing, hiding, and dealing

with the impugned goods in a manner which he knew or had reasons

to believe that the same is liable to confiscation under the Act. It is,

therefore, proved beyond doubt that the passenger has committed an

offence of the nature described in Section tL2 of the Customs Act,

1962 making him liable for penalty under Section 112 of the Customs

Act, 1962.

19. I also find that the passenger has submitted that the gold was

brought by him, for his personal and family use. The gold was

purchased by him, and requested to allow release of gold on payment

of redemption fine, Duty and penalty. He also submitted that he is an

NRI and residing in Dubai since 2017. Also, he is a partner in the firm

Taj Falah General Trading LLC from 2017 and submitted copy of

Memorandum of Association along with agreement of Share, Sales &

Amendment Agreement on Memorandum of Association of Limited

Liability Company, He further submitted that he started new business

in 2024 in the name of Zehraan Groups FZE LLC in Sharjah and

submitted copy of Memorandum & Articles of Association.

20. In this regard, I find that based on suspicious movement of Shri

Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan, he was intercepted at green channel

when he was trying to exit through green channel. Hence, I find that

the passenger was well aware about the fact that the gold is dutiable

item and he intentionally wanted to clear the same without payment

of Customs duty which is also admitted by him in his statement dated

L3.06.2024. Further, the Baggage Rules, 2016 nowhere mentions

anything about import of gold in commercial quantity. It simply

mentions the restrictions on import of gold which are found to be

violated in the present case. Ignorance of law is not an excuse but an

attempt to divert adjudication proceedings.

21. I find that the passenger confessed of carrying the said gold of

349.940 grams, concealed/ hidden, are made up of 24 Kt. having
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22. It is quite clear from the above discussions that the impugned

gold was concealed/ hidden and not declared to the Customs with the

sole intention to evade payment of Customs duty. The record before

me shows that the passenger did not choose to declare the prohibited/

dutiable goods and opted for green channel Customs clearance after

arriving from foreign destination with the wilful intention to smuggle

the impugned goods. The said gold totally weighing 349.940 grams/

having Taritf Value of Rs.22,30,1961- and Market Value of

Rs.25,81,507/- recovered and seized from the passenger vide Seizure

Memo/ Order dated L3.06.2024 under the Panchnama proceedings

dated 13.06.2024. Despite having knowledge that the said gold/ goods

had to be declared and such impoft is an offence under the Act and

Rules and Regulations made under it, the passenger had attempted to

remove the said gold, totally weighing 349.940 grams by deliberately

not declaring the same by him on arrival at the Airport with the wilful

intention to smuggle the impugned gold into India. I, therefore, find

that the passenger has committed an offence of the nature described

in Section 112(a) & 112(b) of the Customs Act, 1962 making him liable
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purity 999.0 and attempted to remove the said gold from the Airport

without declaring it to the Customs Authorities violating the para 2.26

of the Foreign Trade Policy 2015-20 and Section 11(1) of the Foreign

Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992 read with Section 3(2)

and 3(3) of the Foreign Trade (Development and Regulation) Act, 1992

further read in conjunction with Section 11(3) of the Customs Act, 1962

and the relevant provisions of Baggage Rules, 2016 and Customs

Baggage Declaration Regulations, 20t3. As per Section 2(33)

"prohibited goods" means any goods the impoft or export of which is

subject to any prohibition under this Act or any other law for the time

being in force but does not include any such goods in respect of which

the conditions subject to which the goods are permitted to be imported

or exported have been complied with. The improperly imported gold

by the passenger without following the due process of law and without

adhering to the conditions and procedures of import have thus acquired

the nature of being prohibited goods in view of Section 2(33) of the

Act.
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for penalty under the provisions of Section ll2 of the Customs Act,

1962.

23. I further find that the gold is not on the list of prohibited items

but import of the same is controlled. The view taken by the Hon'ble

Supreme Court in the case of Om Prakash Bhatia however in very clear

terms lay down the principle that if importation and exportation of

goods are subject to certain prescribed conditions, which are to be

fulfilled before or after clearance of goods, non-fulfilment of such

conditions would make the goods fall within the ambit of 'prohibited

goods'. This makes the gold seized in the present case "prohibited

goods" as the passenger, trying to smuggle it, was not eligible

passenger to bring it in India or import gold into India in baggage. The

said gold, totally weighing 349.940 grams, was recovered from his

possession, and was kept undeclared with an intention to smuggle the

same and evade payment of Customs duty. By using this modus, it is
proved that the goods are offending in nature and therefore prohibited

on its importation. Here, conditions are not fulfilled by the passenger.

24. In view of the above discussions, I hold that the said gold totally

weighing 349.940 grams, carried and undeclared by the passenger

with an intention to clear the same illicitly from the Airport and evade

payment of Customs duty are liable for absolute confiscation. Further,

the passenger has carried the said gold by concealing/ hiding to evade

payment of Customs duty, to earn easy money. In the instant case, I

am therefore, not inclined to use my discretion to give an option to

redeem the said gold on payment of redemption fine, as envisaged

under Section 125 of the Act.

25. Fufther, before the Hon'ble Kerala High Court in the case of Abdul

Razak [2012(275) ELT 300 (Ker)], the petitioner had contended that

under the Foreign Trade (Exemption from application of rules in certain

cases) Order, 1993, gold was not a prohibited item and can be released

on payment of redemption fine. The Hon'ble High Court held as under:

"Further, as per the statement given by the appellant under

Section 108 of the Act, he is only a carrier i.e, professional
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smuggler smuggling goods on behalf of others for consideration.

We, therefore, do not find any merit in the appellant's case that

he has the right to get the confiscated gold released on payment

of redemption fine and duty under Section 125 of the Act."

26. In the case of Samynathan Murugesan t2009 (247) ELT 21

(Mad)1, the Hon'ble High Court upheld the absolute confiscation,

ordered by the adjudicating authority, in similar facts and

circumstances. Further, in the said case of smuggling of gold, the

Hon'ble High Court of Madras in the case of Samynathan Murugesan

reported at 2009 (247) ELI 21(Mad) has ruled that as the goods were

prohibited and there was concealment, the Commissioner's order for

absolute confiscation was upheld.

27. Further, I find that in a recent case decided by the Hon'ble High

Court of Madras reported at 2016-TIOL-1664-HC-MAD-CUS in respect

of Malabar Diamond Gallery Pvt. Ltd., the Court while holding gold

jewellery as prohibited goods under Section 2(33) of the Customs Act,

1962 had recorded that "restriction" also means prohibition. In Para 89

of the order it was recorded as under :

89. While considering a prayer for provisional release,

pending adjudication, whether all the above can wholly be ignored

by the authorities, enjoined with a duty, to enforce the statutory

provisions, rules and notifications, in letter and spirit, in

consonance with the objects and intention of the Legislature,

imposing prohibitions/ restrictions under the Customs Act, 1962

or under any other law, for the time being in force, we are of the

view that all the authorities are bound to follow the same,

wherever, prohibition or restriction is imposed, and when the

word, "restriction", also means prohibition, as held by the Hon'ble

Apex Court in Om Prakash Bhatia's case (cited supra).

28. The Hon'ble High Court of Madras in the matter of Commissioner

of Customs reported in (AIR), CHENNAI-I Versus P. SINNASAMY 2016

(344) E.L.T. 1154 (Mad.) held-

Tribunal had arrogated powers of adjudicating authority by

directing authority to release gold by exercising option in favour
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of respondent - Tribunal had overlooked categorical finding of
adjudicating authority that respondent had deliberately

aftempted to smuggle 2548.3 grams of gold, by concealing and

without declaration of Customs for monetary consideration -

Adjudicating authority had given reasons for confiscation of gold

while allowing redemption of other goods on payment of fine -

Discretion exercised by authority to deny release, is in

accordance with law - Inter-ference by Tribunal is against law and

unjustified -

Redemption fine - Option - Confiscation of smuggled gold -

Redemption cannot be allowed, as a matter of right - Discretion

conferred on adjudicating authority to decide - Not open to

Tribunal to issue any positive directions to adjudicating authority

to exercise option in favour of redemption.

30. Given the facts of the present case before me and the

judgements and rulings cited above, the said gold, made up of 24 Kt.

gold having purity 999.00, totally weighing 349.940 grams carried by

the passenger is, therefore, liable to be confiscated absolutely. I,

therefore, hold in unequivocal terms that the said gold, totally

weighing 349.940 grams, placed under seizure would be liable to

absolute confiscation under Section 111(d), 111(f), 111(i), 111(j),

111(l) & 111(m) of the Customs Act, 1962.
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29. In 2019 (370) E.L.T. 1743 (G.O.I.), before the Government of

India, Ministry of Finance, [Department of Revenue - Revisionary

Authorityl; Ms. Mallika Arya, Additional Secretary in Abdul Kalam

Ammangod Kunhamu vide Order No. 17/2019-Cus., dated 07.10.2019

in F. No. 375/06/B/2017-RA stated that it is observed that C.B.I. & C.

had issued instruction vide Letter F. No. 495/5/92-Cus. VI, dated

10.05.1993 wherein it has been instructed that "in respect of gold

seized for non-declaration, no option to redeem the same on

redemption fine under Section 125 of the Customs Act, 1962 should be

given except in very trivial cases where the adjudicating authority is

satisfied that there was no concealment of the gold in question".
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31. I further find that the passenger had involved himself and

abetted the act of smuggling of the said gold carried by him. He has

agreed and admitted in his statement that he travelled with said gold,

totally weighing 349.940 grams from Dubai to Ahmedabad. Despite his

knowledge and belief that the gold carried by him is an offence under

the provisions of the Customs Act, 1962 and the Regulations made

under it, the Passenger attempted to smuggle the said gold of 349.940

grams by concealing/ hiding in the form of 59 gold cut bars. Thus, it is

clear that the passenger has concerned himself with carrying,

removing, keeping, concealing and dealing with the smuggled gold

which he knows very well and has reason to believe that the same are

liable for confiscation under Section 111 of the Customs Act, 1962.

Therefore, I find that the passenger is liable for penal action under

Section 112(a)(i) of the Act and I hold accordingly.

32. Further, I find that the passenger has contended that the gold

was brought for his family members and due to ignorance of law he

was unable to declare; he is an NRI and residing in Dubai since 2017;

and a partner in partner in the firm Taj Falah General Trading LLC from

2017; that he started new business in 2024 in the name of Zehraan

Groups FZE LLC in Sharjah. In my view, the said submissions are

without any substance because the passenger was intercepted when

he was about to exit through the green channel and after interception

he was asked as to whether he is carrying any dutiable goods or foreign

currency or any restricted goods declarable to Customs, in reply he

denied of having any such goods. Fufther, I find that the passenger in

his statement categorically admitted that he is aware that brining gold

in India without paying Customs duty was also in contrary to the

subsequent submission made by the passenger that the gold was

brought for his family members. I also find that the passenger had

carried the gold in concealed manner in his baggage (03 NIVEA cream

packets and 06 RADIAN massage cream tubes) also in contrary to his

claim of ignorance of law. Therefore, the contentions of the passenger

are not tenable.

33. Accordingly, I pass the following Order:
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ORDER

(i) I order absolute confiscatlon of the impugned gold, in the

form of 59 gold cut bars , of 999.0/ 24Kt. purity, having

total weight of 349.940 Grams and having total tariff

value of Rs.22,3O,196/- (Rupees Twenty-Two Lakhs

Thirty Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Six only) and market

value of Rs.25,81,507/- (Rupees Twenty-Five Lakhs

Eighty-One Thousand Five Hundred Seven only) recovered

and seized from the passenger Shri Zahidkhan

Qayyumkhan Pathan vide Seizure Order dated

13.06.2024 under Panchnama proceedings dated

13.06.2024 under the provisions of Section 111(d),

111(f), 111(i), 111(j), 111(l) & 111(m) of the Customs

Act, t962;

(ii) I impose a penalty of Rs.7,5O,OOO/- (Rupees Seven

Lakhs Fifty Thousand Only) on Shri Zahidkhan

Qayyumkhan Pathan under the provisions of Section

112(a)(i) of the Customs Act, 1962.

34. This order is issued without prejudice to any other action that

may be taken against the passenger/ Noticee or any other person(s)

concerned with said goods under the Customs Acl, 1962, or any other

law for the time being in force in India.
(

F. No. VIII/10- 1 13/SVPIA-C / O&A/HQ/2024-25
DIN : 202407 7 1 MN0000999D3B

BY SPEED POST A.D.

To,
Shri Zahidkhan Qayyumkhan Pathan,
39, Sabliya Estate,
Modasa, Sabarkantha,
Pin - 383 315.

(vi
Additional Commissioner

Customs, Ahmedabad

Date: 30.07.2024
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Copy to:
(i)

( ii)

( iii)

(iv)

(v)

OrO No: 11I/ADC/VM/O &Al2024-25
F. No: v lllllG U 3/SVPIA -C/O&AlHOl2O24-2s

The Principal Commissioner of Customs, Ahmedabad. (Kind
Attn: RRA Section).
The Dy./Asstt. Commissioner of Customs (AIU), SVPIA,
Ahmedabad.
The Dy./Asstt. Commissioner of Customs (TRC),

Ahmedabad.
The System In charge, Customs HQ, Ahmedabad for
uploading on official web-site i.e.
http : //www.ahmedabadcustoms. gov, in.
Guard File.
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